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HSBC ( )
876,074.09 125,566. 69 1,276,476.98
(132,376.69) ) (144,705.27)
633,900.69 627,124.23 1,283,253.44
(259,532.34) (23,314.56) (380,923.05)
182,438.24 372,180.57 1,093,511.11
(9,692.39) (28,253.61) (362,361.83)
763,465.87 321,531.61 1,535,445.37
(13,537.55) (72,765.29) (303,134.09)
208,093.49 486,325.60 1,257,213.26
) ©) (303,134.09)
98,476.61 645,224.59 710,465.28
(0.00) (180,050.83) (123,083.26)
32,585.12 320,549.33 422,501.07
(0.00) (50,657.05) (72,426.21)
4,632.66 115,618.20 311,515.53
(3,336.23) (20,479.82) (55,282.62)
0.00 52,335.62 259,179.91
(0.00) (20,367.47) (34,915.15)
8,423.72 28,575.65 239,027.98
(4,332.94) (13,645.86) (25,602.23)
) )
)y 12 HSBC
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HSBC )
219,939.39 13,498.54 225,441.71
(V) © )
179,745.99 158,221.72 246,965.98
(1,283.61) ) (1,283.61)
53,942.34 158,189.88 142,718.44
(973.77) ) (2,257.38)
96,438.10 49,247.79 189,908.75
) () (2,257.38)
22,105.19 78,056.42 133,957.52
) ) (2,257.38)
10,920.48 128,613.49 16,264.51
(0.00) (1,084.76) (1,172.62)
55.48 7,115.28 9,204.71
(0.00) (0.00) (1,172.62)
7.45 4,204.77 5,007.39
(0.00) (0.00) (1,172.62)
0.00 1,045.60 3,961.79
(0.00) (0.00) (1,172.62)
0.00 1,549.67 2,412.12
(0.00) (1,172.62) (0.00)
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HSBC
2017 31

2017 31 2016 31
60,560 6,786 60,358 6,763
656 74 1,404 157
4,220 473 24 3
4,876 546 1,428 160
65,436 7,332 61,786 6,923
(3,639) (408) (7,530) (844)
(3,639) (408) (7,530) (844)
61,797 6,924 54,256 6,079

HSBC
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2017 31
2017 31 2016 31
(2,759) (309) 7,502 841
473 53 - -
(38) @® (51 ®)
(1,082) (121) (1,605) (180)
(1,120) (125) (1,656) (186)
(3,406) (382) 5,846 655
2017 31
2017 31 2016 31
54,256 6,079 68,429 7,667
18,897 2,117 789 88
(7,950) (891) (20,808) (2,332)
10,947 1,227 (20,019) (2,243)
(3,406) (382) 5,846 655
61,797 6,924 54,256 6,079
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2017 31 2016 31
2,585 4,188
(5,564) 5,213
1,288 880
(985) (2,929)
(83) 150
(2,759) 7,502
12
2017 31 2016 31
(754) (864)
(137) (482)
(891) (1,346)
(49) (60)
(15) (14)
®) @
(122) (183)
(142) (199)
(1,082) (1,605)
HSBC
HSBC
0.65%
864,267
C.I. HSBC
0.10%
49,402 2016 60,280
10
482,467
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3 LIBOR 3.5
folakela 3 LIBOR 3.5
3 LIBOR 3.5
3 LIBOR 3.5
3 LIBOR 3.5
3 LIBOR 3.5
** 3 LIBOR 3.5
* 3 LIBOR 3.5
flelal 3 LIBOR 3.5
* 2016 11 30
** 2016 12 30
il 2017 31
FAAK 2017 28
2017 31 2016 31
500 1,199
12 5 45
9 6
- 1
142 153
656 1,404
2017 31 2016 31
4,220 24
4,220 24
HSBC C.I.
2017 31
2016 31 A HSBC

2017 31 Al 2016 31 Al
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2017 31 2016 31
(1,755) -
* (796) (2,575)
11 (1,007) (4,459)
12 (44) (€D
- (473)
(37 (22)
(3,639) (7,530)
* 2017 16 2016 2016 18
795,987 2016 2,575,412
HSBC 1989
1,200 2016 1,200
2016
259,179.91 3,961.79 2,099.43 5,512.00
8,423.72 - - 2,724.00
(28,575.65) (1,549.67) (2,099.43) -
2017 31
239,027.98 2,412.12 - 8,236.00
2016
48,035.56 596.70 - -
141.25 478.91 95,936.32 53,641.70
(15,824.67) - (1,921.26) (52.24)
2017 31
32,352.14 1,075.61 94,015.06 53,589.46
2016
- 319,385.39
8,547.57 169,893.47
- (50,022.92)
2017 31
8,547.57 439,255.94
* 2016 11 30
*ox 2016 12 30
woxx 2017 31
Hoxxx 2017 28
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2015
311,515.53 5,007.39 2,535.07
(52,335.62) (1,045.60) (435.64)
2016 31
259,179.91 3,961.79 2,099.43
2015
3,564.09 22,124.22 100,022.11 444,768.41
- - 4,731.94 4,731.94
(2,967.39) (16,612.22) (56,718.49) (130,114.96)
2016 31
596.70 5,512.00 48,035.56 319,385.39
2017 31
38,135 401 - 966 5,001
2016 31
44,346 679 461 687 8,002
2015 31
47,050 751 580 2,413 17,218
*
2017 31
141 9,210 6,956 987 61,797
2016 31
81 - - - 54,256
2015 31
M7 - - - 68,429
* 2016 11 30
o 2016 12 30
ook 2017 31
ok 2017 28

65
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1,007,069
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2017 31
2017 31
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2017 31
2017 31
2017 31
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383,915

12,729

HSBC

115,627
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385,134
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2017 31 HSBC
2017 31 4,069,169 5,356,674 State Street (19
Bank
2017 31 101,723 133,785 State Street -
Bank
9
2017 31 HSBC
2017 31 5,128,805 6,751,585 State Street (24)
Bank
2017 31 127,199 167,290 State Street (€))
Bank
2017 31 36,318 47,638 State Street -
Bank
(25
2017 31 HSBC
2017 31 805,990 944,818 State Street 3
Bank
2017 31 26,169 30,743 State Street -
Bank
3
5
(C2D)

(ER)
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2016 31 HSBC
2016 31 677,559 746,060 State Street 7
Bank
2016 31 6,355 5,772 State Street -
Bank
7
2016 31 HSBC
2016 31 10,586 8,077 State Street -
Bank
2016 31 350,722 460,179 State Street 2
Bank
2
2016 31 HSBC
2016 31 2,899 2,634 State Street -
Bank
2016 31 309,373 340,651 State Street 3
Bank
3
2016 31 HSBC
2016 31 7,387,326 9,692,837 State Street 33
Bank
2016 31 225,469 172,034 State Street D)
Bank
32
45
@
44

13
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1,518
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2017 31
- 60,560 - 60,560
- 5 - 5
- 60,565 - 60,565
- (44) - (44)
- (44) - (44)

2016 31
- 60,358 - 60,358
- 45 - 45
- 60,403 - 60,403
- D) - D)
- @ - D)
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18

19

20

2017 31 2016 31
0.8516 0.9011
0.7631 0.7599
2017 31 2016 31

HSBC - 166.18 158.27
HSBC - 149.88 140.56
HSBC - 162.14 -*
HSBC - 117.70 111.23
HSBC - 121.19 116.36
HSBC - 123.04 117.03
HSBC - 100.50 97.05
HSBC - 102.03 98.22
HSBC - 101.50 97.57

2017 28
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21
2016 11 30
2016 12 30
2017 31
2017 28
2017
22
23
795,987
2016 2,575,412
2017 31 2016 31
62,593 56,831
(796) (2,575)

61,797 54,256
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HSBC
2017 31
(2016 :111.25%)
AHL (Cayman) SPC - Class Al Evolution USD Shares 6,212,202 10,719 17.35%
AHL Evolution Frontier Fund 1,919,692 2,117 3.43%
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. 1,500 1,497 2.42%
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portfolio - Series 95 4,923 4,925 7.97%
MS Lynx UCITS Fund USD - Class B 4,953 3,830 6.20%
Tewksbury Investments Fund 585 11,904 19.25%
Transtrend Fund Alliance - Omnitrend (USD) 2,066 4,360 7.06%
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Ltd. GSY 1,157 6,363 10.30%
Two Sigma Investment Fund Ltd. — Class A 4,572 5,813 9.41%
Winton Futures Fund Ltd. 23,000 2,295 3.71%
Winton Futures Fund Ltd. - Class B 6,784 6,737 10.90%
60,560 98.00%
Discus Non US Side Holdings Ltd. - Class S* 11,076 —*% -
1,237 2.00%
61,797 100.00%
16

500
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HSBC
2017 31
2017 7 31 2016 7 31 2015 7 31
239,027.98 259,179.91 311,515.53
2,412.12 3,961.79 5,007.39
ok - 2,099.43 2,535.07
1,075.61 596.70 3,564.09
8,236.00 5,512.00 22,124.22
32,352.14 48,035.56 100,022.11
*ox 94,015.06 - -
* 53,589.46 - -
Hok 8,547.57 - -
159.54 171.11 151.04
141.52 154.52 137.19
Hoxkx - 166.94 146.97
111.74 121.50 106.89
117.34 12467 109.09
117.97 126.58 110.55
wox 97.96 - -
* 99.05 - -
ok 98.37 - -
38,135 44,346 47,050
341 612 687
( Yrrrx - 350 373
120 72 381
966 687 2,413
3,817 6,080 11,057
ok 9,210 - -
( )* 5,308 - -
ok 841 - -
2016 11 30
2016 12 30
2017 31

2017 28
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HSBC

2017 31

24.74
75.26
100.00
2017 31 2016 31
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC
2017 31

Tewksbury Investment Fund Ltd. 2,500 2,503
Tewksbury Investments Fund 128 2,503
Winton Futures Fund Ltd. 23,000 2,300
AHL (Cayman) SPC — Class Al Evolution USD Shares 1,344,607 2,123
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. 1,500 1,500
Transtrend Fund Alliance — Omnitrend 449 1,000
MS Lynx UCITS Fund USD - Class B 1,005 950
AHL Evolution Frontier Fund 466,941 500
Tewksbury Investment Fund Ltd. 2,500 2,503
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Ltd. GSY 358 2,247
AHL (Cayman) SPC - Class Al Evolution USD Shares 1,210,118 2,000
Winton Futures Fund Ltd. - Class B 1,918 1,950
Two Sigma Investment Fund Ltd. - Class A 565 800
Tewksbury Investments Fund 37 698
* %

20

2017 7 31
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HSBC
2017 31
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HSBC
(6.76)% 13.29% 13.98% .36%  (11.18)%
LIBOR 3.5 4.63% 4.10% 2.23% .22% 2.250
HSBC
(8.41)% 12.63% 14.52% 31%  (22.84)%
LIBOR 3.5 3.27% 3.45% 2.09% .23% 2.15%
HSBC
ok 13.59% 15.02% 29%  (14.72)%
LIBOR 3.5% 4.19% 2.38% 2.36% 2.35%
HSBC
(8.03)% 13.67% 15.62% .29%
LIBOR 3.5% 3.27% 3.45% 2.09% .23% 2.15%
HSBC
(5.88)% 14.28% 15.11% .38%
LIBOR 3.50 4.63% 4.10% 2.23% .22% 2.250
HSBC
(6.80)% 14.50% 16.15% .64%
LIBOR 3.5% 4.03% 4.19% 2.38% .36% 2.350
HSBC
*kk
LIBOR 3.5% 4.63%
HSBC
**%
LIBOR 3.5 4.03%
HSBC
**k*k*k
LIBOR 3.5% 3.27%

95/192



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
ooooodooodooodooondn

HSBC

* (14.26)%

3 LIBOR
3.5 2.08%
2014 30
2016 11 30
2016 12 30
2017 31
2017 28
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

COMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 2017

As al As al
31 Juby 2017 31 July 2016

MNotes US$000 LS$000 US$'000 LSE5000
Assals
Current assels
Podtiolio of investments 60,560 60,358
Debiors & 656 1,404
Cash and cash equivalenis T 4,220 24

4,876 1,428

Total Assels 65,436 61,786
Liabilitias
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8§ (3,639) {7,530)
Total Liabilities 3,638 7,530
Met assets atiributable to the holders of
redeemable pariicipating units 61,797 54,358
The consolidated financial statemenis on pages 13 fo 31 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management
(Gyparmsay) Limited, on ‘5 Ocipher 2013 and were signed on its behalf by:

N

Director

For and on behbif of
(Guarnsey) Limited

The notes on pages 15 to 31 form an integral par of these consalidated financial statements.

14
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HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

Year ended Year ended
3 July 2097 31 July 2018
Motes US$'000 Us$000 US5'000 US$'000

Income:
Met capital (losses)/gains 3 (2,759) 7,502
ihar income 473 -
Finance costs: Interest {38) {51)
Operating expenses 4 (1,082} (1,605)
Mat expenses 1,120 (1,658)

Change in nel assats atiributable 1o the holders of
redeemable participating units from investmant

activities @,4&5] 5,848

All results derive from continuing operations,

The Fund has no itams of other comprehensive income and therefore the change in net assets attributable 1o the
holders of redeemable participating units reflects the tolal comprehensive income for the year.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

Year anded Year ended
31 July 2017 31 July 2016
USS'000 US$000 US%000 USE000

Mat assets attributable to the holders of redeemable

participating units at the start of the year 54,256 68,429
Movement due 1o issue and redemption of redeemable
participating units:
Amounts received/receivable on issues 18,897 789
Less: amounts paid/payable on redemptions (7, 250) (20,808)

10,847 (20,018)
Charnge in net assels attributable to the holders of radeemable
participating units from investment activities (3,408) 5,846
Met assels attributable to the helders of redeemable
paricipating units at the end of the year 61.797 54,258

The notes on page 15 to 31 form an Integral pan of these consolidatad financial statements.

13
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HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund (the “Trust’) is a sub-fund of HSBC Uni-Folio, an open ended Guemsay unit
trust scheme established as an umbrella fund which is authorised under the Protection of Investors (Bailtwick of
Guamsey) Law, 1987 as amended and Is subject to the provisions of the Authorised Collective Investment (Class
B) Rules, 2013 (the "Rules™).

The registered office of the Manager of the Trust is Amold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guemsay
GY1 3NF, Channal islands.

The Trust Invests through a wholly owned subsidiary, HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Investments Limited (the
“Company”), a BV] registered company. All investments acquired for the account of the Trust are held by the
Company. The purpose of the Company |8 to ensufe thal any withholding tax on distributions from swch
investments may be reclaimed.

These consolidated financial staterments inciude all the assets and liabiliies of the Trust and the Company
(together the “Fund®),

The Trust registered as an Alternativa Investment Fund (AIF) with effect from 1 July 2014, with the Financial
Conduct Authority in the United Kingdom and the Commission de Surveillance du Sector Financier in
Luxembourg and i available under private placement in these countries. As a non-EEA AIF with a non-EEA
AIFM the Trust is not authorised or reguiated under AIFMD and consequently is not required to have a

depositary.

The units of the Sterling Class and Stering R Class of the Trust were de-listed from the Irish Stock Exchange on
3 January 2017.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Financlal Reporting Standard
appiicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 102°) and the Statement of Recommended
Practice for Authorised Funds (the *S0RP®) issued by the investment Management Association in May 2014 and
effective for accounting pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2015,

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applled consistently in dealing with iems which are considered
material in relation to these consolidated financial statemeants:

Basis of i

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on & going concern basis ender the histodical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition and measuramant of cerain financial assals and liabilites at fair value.
The Trust has availed of the exemption available under FRS 102, Section 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ not o
prepare a cash flow statement on the basis that substantially all of the Trust's investments are highly liquid and
camied at falr value, and the Trust provides a statement of changes in net assels atirbutable to redeemable
paricipating unitholders.

Use of estimates and judgements

Tha preparation of consolidated financial statements In accordance with the recognition and measuremeant
principles of FRS 102 requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingant assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expensas
during the year.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical exparience and varicus other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complaxity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant 1o the consofidated financial siatements are disclosed within the Financial Instruments accounting
policy; clause i) and Note 13,

Basis of congaolidation
The consolidated financial statemnenis inclede the results of the Trust and ifs wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC
Trading Advantedge Investments Limited. The Manager does nol consider the unconsolideted balance sheet of

the Trust to be of any relevance as the only reason for saling up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Accordingly no unconsolidated balance sheet is presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Eunctional and presentation currency

The functional and presentational currency is US Dollar ("US$") because that is the currency of the primary
aconomic enviranment in which (he Fund operates.

Einancial instryments

The Fund has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments,

i) Financial assels

Basic financial assets, including deblors, cash and cash equivalents, are initially recognised at transaction price,

unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured al the prasent
value of the fulure receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Such assels are subsequantly carred al amortised cost using the effective inlerest method.

At the end of each reporting period financial assels measured at amorised cost are assessed for objective
evidance of impairment, If an assel is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the assel's original effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of total return.

Other financial assets, including investments in invesiment funds and derivative contracts, are inilially measured
at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assels are subsequently camried al fair value and the
changas in fair value are recognised in the consolidated statement of total returm.

Financial assels are derecognised when (a) the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
sattled, or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the assel are transferred (o another pary
or (c) control of the asset has been transfarred o ancther parly who has the praclical abillty to unilalerally sell ihe
asset io an unreleted third party without imposing additional restrictions.

i} Financial liabilities

Basic financial Eabiliies, including creditors and loan obligations are initially recognised at transaction price,
unlass the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, whera the debt instrument is measured at the present
value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest,

Creditors and loan obligations are classified a5 debt instruments and are subsequently carried at amortised cost,
uging the effective inlerest rate method.

Financial liabilties are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contraciual cbligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
iii} Fair value of invesimants

Investments in investment funds are valued at the closing net asset value per unit for the underlying investments
that the Fund holds, as at 5 pm [Guemsey time) on the consolidated balance shee! date. Investments in
underlying funds which are not quoted on a recognised stock exchange or other trading facility are valued at the
net asset values provided by such enftities or their administrators. These values may be unaudited or may
themselves be estimates.

In addition, these entitias or their administrators may not provide values at all or In a timely manner and, fo the
axtent that values are not available, thosa investiments will be valued by the Investment Adviser using valuation
techniques appropriate to these investments. [n determining fair velue, the Investmemt Adviser takes Mo
consideration, where applicable, the impact of suspension of redemptions, Bquidation proceedings, investmants in
gide pockets and other significant factors. The Directors of the Manager have no reason to believe that the
valuations used are unreasanable,

Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included in the consolidated statemeant of total
raturn within income. Realised gains and losses on seles of securities are determined using the average cost
method, Purcheses and sales of the Investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.

iv) Forward foreign exchange confracts

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange contracts s calculated by
reference to the difference between the contracted rate and the rate o close out the contract. Unrealised gains
are reporied a3 an asset and unrealised losses are reported as a Gability in the consolidated balance sheet, All net
gains or losses on forward foneign exchange contracts are recorded in the consolidated statement of total retum.

Revenug

Intarest income s recognised using the effective inlerest rate method. Dividend income is recognised when the
right to recelve payment is established. All other sources of income are recognised on an accruals basis, Revenue
& included In the consolidated statement of tofal return. All non-class specific income s allocated to each unit
class in proportion to the total net assets of the unit class during the year. All class specific income is allocated 1o
the unit class to which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are included on an accruals basis in the consolidated staterment of total refumn. All non-class specific
expanses are allocated to aach unit class in proportion to the total net assels of the unit class during the yvear. All
class specific expenses are allecated o the unit class lo which they relate.

Interest expenss

Interest expense arises from credit facilities held by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the consofidated
stalement of total relurn and are calculated using the effective interest rate mathod.

Eoreign currency lransactions

Foreign cumency transactions are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assels and llabilities danominated in forsign curencies ane translated to US Dollars at the foresgn curmency closing
exchange rate ruling at the conscolidated balance sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss
as well as the unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation on non-US Dollar denominated invastments in the
consolidated stalement of total return. Any realised exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised galns or

losses arising from non-US Dollar denominated payables and receivables and on foreign currency transactions
ara refiected in the consolidated statement of total returm.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs
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Borrowing cosls arise from cradit faciities held by the Fund., These cosls are recognised in the consolidated

statement of lolal return on an accruals basis,

Cash Flow Statement

Under FRS 102 the Fund i exempl fram the requirement o prepare a cash flow stalement as it complies with the

conditions for open-anded investment funds,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inchudes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-lerm highly liquid
inwestments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafls. Bank overdrafls, when

appicable, are shown as loans payable in currant liabilties.
Formation expense

In accordance with the Fund's Prospectus the formation costs will be amortised over a period not exceeding five
years or such shorter pericd as the Manager may determine. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not
in line with FRS 102 to recognise the costs in the year they are incurrad. This departure from FRS 102 does not
have a matenal impact on the resulls reported in the consalidated financial stalements.

Units in iggie

Redeemable participating units are redeemabla al the oplion of the holder of redeemable participating units and

are classified as financial liabilties.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incremental cosis thal are directly atiributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value thiough profit of less, Transaction cosls are recognisad

within the consolidated statemeant of total return when incurred.

Mew standards and amendmants

There are currently no future amendments to FRS 102 issued that would have a significant impact on the Fund.

3 MNET CAPITAL (LOSSESNGAING

Met realised gaing on non-derivative investments

Mal unrealised (losses)gains on non-derivative investments
Mat realised gaing on dervalive investments

Mel realised losses on darivalive investmanls

Met unrealised {losses)/gains on derivative invesiments

Total net capital {losses)igains

Year ended Yaar ended
31 July 2017 31 July 2016
US$000 USS000
2,585 4,188
{5.564) 5213
1,288 BBO

(285) (2,928)

(83} 150

{2,759) 7.502

Darivative investmeants hald by the Fund are forward foreign exchange contracts as delailed in Note 12,
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HSEC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4 OPERATING EXPENSES Year ended Yaar ended
31 July 2017 31 July 2016
USE'000 Us$'o00
Payable o the Manager and its associates:
Management fes (Note 5) (754) (BB4)
Parformance fee (Note 5) {137) (482)
(891} (1,346)
Payable to the Trustee and ils associates:
Trustee fees (Note 5) {49} {60}
Other expenses:
Audit fees (15) {14)
Formation expanses (5) (2
Other sundry expenses (122) {183}
(142} {198}
Tatal operating expenses {1,082) {1.805)

5 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the terms of a trust deed dated 23 July 1998, as amended from time lo time (the “Trust Deed®), HSBC
Management (Guemsey) Limited is the Manager of HSBC Uni-Folio which includes the HSBC Trading
AdvantEdge Fund. In accordance with the Prospectus the Manager is enfitied to recelve a management fee of
1.65% of the NAV for all unit classes except the 5 Classes and the R Classes. The Manager receives a
management fee of 0.15% (including Trustea's fee) of tha NAV per annum for the S Classes and 0.65% of the
WAV per annum for the R Classes. The management fee for the year amounted to USS$753,853 (2016:
LIS5864,267). There were no fees outstanding at the year end (2016: USSNil).

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, HSBC Private Bank (C..) Limited is Trustee of HSBC Uni-Folio. In
accordance with the Prospectus the Trustee is entitied to receive a fee of 0.10% of the NAY per annum for all unit
classes. The brusiee fee for the year amounted to USS49402 (2016: US$60,280). There were no fees
outstanding at the year end (2016: USSNII).

In eccordance with the Prospectus the Manager is entifed to a performance fea of 10% of naw “excess” value
over the Index of the applicable unit class, see page 2 and 3 for details, for all unitl classes. The performance fee
for the year amountad to US$136,606 (2016: USS482 467). There were no performance fees outstanding al the
year end (2016: USE472 B4T).

The Manager pays the Invesiment Adviser's Fes out of the Management Fee.

& DEBTORS As at As at
31 July 2017 31 July 2016

UES'000 LS00

Receivable for securities sold 500 1,199
Unrealiged gains on forward contracts (Note 12) & 45
Prepaid formation expense 8 &
Receivable for management fee reimbursemeant - 1
Prepaid sundry expenses 142 153

656 1,404
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T (CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
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Az al As al

31 July 2017 31 July 2016
US$'000 USS$000
4,220 24

4,220 24

Cash balances are held by State Street Cusiodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Sub-Custodian™) and HSBC
Private Bank {C..) Limied (the ~Trustee"). The Fund's cash Is mainiained within the Sub-Custodian’s sub-

custodial natwork in

accounts. The cradit rating of State Street Corporalion, the parent company of the

sagregated :
Sub-Custodian at 31 July 2017 was A (31 July 2018: A). The credit rating of HSBC Holdings ple, the ultimats

parent of the Trustesa, at 31 July 2017 was A1 (31 July 2016 A1)
B CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Amounis received in advance of issuing units
Payable for fund units redeemed*

Loans payable (Nole 11)

Unrealised losses on forward contracts (Mote 12)
Accrued performance fee (Note 5)

Other accrued expenses

As pl As al

31 July 2017 31 July 2016
UsS$'000 LIS3000
{1.755) E
(T96) (2.575)
(1,007) {4,459)

(44} (1}

= [473)

(37} {22}

(3,639) (7,530}

* AL the year and, the Fund paid USST95987 (2016; US52 575,412) in respect of redeemable participating wnits
which were redeemed by the Fund on 16 August 2017 [(2016: 18 August 20186).

8 TAXATION STATUS

The umbrella fund, HSBC Uni-Folio, is exempt from Guernsey income tax vndar the Income Tax (Exempt Bodles)
{Guernsey) Ordinance 1989 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 1,200 (2016: GBP1,200).

10 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS IN ISSUE

MNumber  Mumber Numbar  Mumber
LS Daollar Eurg Sterling US Dollar
Class Class  Class™"* R Class
Redesmable participating units in issue at 1 August 2016 25817991 396978 200943 551200
Subscriptions 842372 . - 272400
Redemptions (28,575.65) (1,549.67) (2,0809.43) -
Redeemable participating units In issue at 31 July 2017 23502798  2412.12 - B,236.00
MNumber Mumbear Mumber Mumber
Sterling Euwrt SClass  SClass
R Class  Hedged (US Dollar)™ (Sterling)®

R Class
Redeamable participating unils in issue at 1 August 2016 48035.56 586.70 = ::
Subscriptions 141,25 47891 9593632 53.641.70
Redamplions (15,824.67) - (1,921.28) (52.24)

Redeemable parlicipating units in isswe at 31 July 2047 3235214 1
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS (CONTINUED)

10

REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING LINITS IM ISSUE (CONTINUED)

Redeamable participating unils in issus at 1 August 2016

Subscriptions
Redemptions

Redeemable participating units in issus at 31 July 2017

Number Mumber
5 Class Total
[Eum]."
- 318,385.29
8,547,857 169,803.47
- {50,022.92)
8,547.57 430,255 84

*This Unit Class launched on 30 Movember 2016,
**This Unit Class launched on 30 Decamber 2016.

***This Unit Class launched on 31 January 2017.
****This Unit Class was fully redeemed on 28 February 2017.

Redeemable participating units in issue at 1 August 2015

Subscripthions
Redemplions

Redeamable participating units in issue at 31 July 2016

Mumbear Mumber Mumber
US Dallar Euro Sterling
Class Class Class

311,515.53 5,007.38 2,535.07

(52,335.62) (1.04560)  (435.64)

259,179.91 3,961.79 2,088.43

e —— e e e,

Mumber Number Number MNumber
Euro Hedged  US Dollar Sterling Total
R Class R Class R Class
Redeemable participating units in issue at 1 August 2015 3.564.08 2212422 100,022.11 444,768.41
Subscriptions - - 4,731.94 4,731,594
Redemplions {2,867.38) (16,612.23) (56,718.49) (130,114.96)
Redeemable participating units In issue at 31 July 2016 586.70 561200 4803556 319,385.38
US Dollar Euro Sterling US Dodlar Sterling
Class Class Clasg*** R Class R Class
LISE000 USS000 USS000 LKSS000 US5000
Met Assels at
31 July 2017 38,135 401 - 66 5,001
Mat Assets at
31 July 2016 44,346 E70 481 gav 8,002
Met Assets al
31 July 2015 47,050 751 580 2413 17,218
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
10 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS IN ISSUE (CONTINUED)

Euro

Hedged 5 Class 5 Class 5 Class

R Clazs (US Dollar)** (Sterling)* (Eura)**™ Total

USS'000 LSE'000 UIS8000 USS000 US$'000
Met Azsets al
31 July 2017 141 9,210 6,956 a7 51,797
Met Assets al
31 July 2016 81 - - - 54,256
Nal Aszats at
31 July 2015 417 . - - 68429

*This Unil Class launched on 30 November 2016,

**This Unit Class launched on 30 December 2016,

***This Unil Class launched on 31 January 2017.

****This Unit Class was fully redeemed on 28 February 2017.

The Fund’s net asset values per unit are disclosed on page 32,
Al series of units rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights atlached to them.

For the Institutionat Classes a redemplion fee of 2% of proceeds may be charged al the Manager's discration on
maonihly radamptions for which instructions are received on or before the last business day of the previous
calendar month minus 5 business days. Mo redemplion fee Is charged on monthly redemptions for which
instructions are recelved not less than 65 days prior to the last business day of each calendar menth.

A maximum initial charge of up 1o 3% of subscription monies may be charged at the Manager's discration.
11 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited acts as Trustes to the Fund,

The Fund also places maney on deposif with the Trustee on a regular basis throughout the year. The Interest rate
recaived is consistent with thal received on normal commercial deposis.

The Manager may limil the number of units in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to not more
than 20% of the tatal number of units in issue immediately before such date.

Bomowings/Loan

The Fund may borrow up 1o a total of 25% of its NAV for a period of up 1o one maonth to cover a cash shortfall
caused by mismatched settliement dates on purchese and sale transactions; and for a pericd of up o three
months to finance redemptions; and for investment purposes subject to a maximum of 10% of the Fund's NAV, to
facilitate additional investment in Invesiment Funds.

HSBC Private Bank (C.l) Limied provided credil facilities to the Fund during the year. At the year
end UISS1,007,069 or 1.63% of the Fund's NAV (2016: US54,450.213 or 8.22% of the Fund’s NAV) inclusive of
interest was oulstanding. Interest of US$38, 177 (2016; USS50,831) was charged for the year.

The interest rate prevailing ai the balance sheet date was 2.46% (2016 1.72%). The loan is repayable on

demand. There were no other related party transactions for the year other than fees paid to the Manager, Trusles
and Investment Adviser as outlined in Mole 5.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHAMGE CONTRACTS

Assals may be denominaled in currancies other than the functional currancy of each unit class and certain
curmancy axposure will be hedged back to the relevant unit class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by
means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracls or by using such other derivative
ingtruments as may ba available and having the sama or similar effect.

The Fund shall not invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. The Investment Adviser ratains the
right to vary the palicy on curmency hedging at its absolute discretion. All costs of such hedging will be met by the
Unithoiders of the refevant unit class only.

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were cutstanding at 31 July 2017 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Trading AdvanlEdge Fund - Euro Class,

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised

Gain

Us§'000

31joaro17 EUR383,915 U5D385,134 State Street Bank 1
loaroT EUR12,720 UsD12, 742 State Street Bank —

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2017 in respect of the hedging of
tha HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Hadged R Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unraalised

Gain

uss'o00

31/oar2017 EUR115,627 USD135,543 State Street Bank 1
31082017 EUR3, 757 UsD4.414 State Street Bank SR

1

The following forward foreign exchange contracts were outstanding at 31 July 2017 in respect of the hadging of
the HSBC Trading AdvamEdge Fund - Sterling R Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Loss

Uss'000

310872047 GBP4,069,169 USD5,356,674 State Street Bank {19)
3N08A0T GBP101.723 USD133,785 State Street Bank -
(18)

The following forward foreign exchange confracts were outstanding at 31 July 2017 in respact of the hedging of
the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - S Class (Steding)

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised

Loss

Uss'000

110872017 GBP5,128,805 USDE,751,585 State Strest Bank (24)

31082017 GBP127,199 UsD167,290 State Street Bank (1)

30ero1T GBP36,318 US04 638 State Strest Bank -
—25)

The following forward foreign exchange contracls were outstanding at 31 July 2047 in respect of the hadging of
the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - § Class (Eura)

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Seld Counterparty Unreallsed
Gain

uss'oon

31/08/2017 ELRBOS, 880 UsSDa44,818 State Strest Bank 3
IosizoT ELR26,169 UsD30,743 Etate Strest Bank =
3
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HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUMD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
12 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

Unrealised

Gain/|Loss)

Us$'000

Total unrealised gains on forward forelgn exchange contracts (Note B) 5
Total unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange contracts (Note &) (44)
Met unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange contracts (39)

Tha following forward loreign exchange conlracls were outstanding at 31 July 2016 in respect of the hedging of

the HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain

Us$'000

31082018 EURET? 558 USDT46,0680 State Streel Bank 7
31082016 USDE, 355 EURS, 772 State Street Bank -

7

The lollowing forward foreign sxchange contracls were outstanding at 31 July 2016 in respect of the hedging af

the HSBG Trading AdvanEdge Fund - Sterding Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised
Gain

USs'000

I0B2016 USD10,588 GBP8OTT State Sireel Bank -
31082016 GBP3sD, 722 USD480,172 State Street Bank 2

2

The following forward foreign exchange contracls were oulstanding at 31 July 2016 in respect of the hedging of

the HSBLC Trading AdwaniEdge Fund - Euro Hedged R Class.

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unrealised

Gain

Us$'000

3100852016 UED2,8059 EURZ2.634 Stale Sireel Bank -

31/0BR2016 EUR309.37T3 UsD3E40.651 State Sireel Bank 3
—

Tha following forward foreign exchange conlracts were oulstanding at 31 July 2016 in respect of the hedging of

the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Stering R Class,

Maturity Date Amount Bought Amount Sald Counterparty Unrealised
Gainl/{Loss

uss'ooo

310872018 GBPT, 387,328 Us0o, 682 837 State Street Bank 1
3082016 USD225,469 GBP1T2,034 Slate Street Bank (1}
32

Total unrealised gaing on forward foreign exchange contracts (Note B) 45
Total unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange contracts (Note 8) (1}
4

Met unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange contracts
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HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Market Risk Oversight

The Manager takes a mulli-tered approach to risk management, with the underslanding and management of risk
embedded in the Manager selection and portfolio managament processas, togather with portfolio oversight and
monitoring In accordance with Fund investment restrictions, as listed In the relevant Fund section in the
Prospectus.

In Manager selection, due diligence revolves around understanding whether the risks 8 hedge fund manager
takes in the pursuit of returns are appropriate and confrolled. Complemanting this investment focused due
diligence, is & separate operaticnal due diigence process, which evaluates the business and operational (non-
investment) risks of a hedge fund and seeks to aveid hedge funds where inadequate structure or process could
compromise an investimeant.

In partfolic management, ensuring that portfolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In order to assess
risk and portfolio diversification, both qualitative and quantitative technigues ara used, including retums and
exposure-based analysis.

The Manager regulardy monitors the Fund's compliance with the investment reskrictions detailed in the
Prospectus, and retains oversight of all aspects of the risk management process,

The main risks arising from the Fund's financlal instruments are market, liquidity and credit risk.
Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from unceriainly aboul future prices of financial Instruments held. It represents the
polential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the asset abocation of the portlolic in order to minimise the risk assoclated with
particular countries or industry sectors whilst continuing to follow the Fund's investment objective.

Market risk embaodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes price risk, currency risk and Interest rate
risk. The profitability of the Fund’s investment programme depends to a great extent on cormect assessments of
the fulure course of price movemenis of securities and equities and ofher investments. Thera can be no
agsurance that the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities markets
have in recent years been characterized by great volatility and unpredictability. With respect to the investment
strategy into which the Investment Adviser has invested the Fund's assats, thene is always some, and from time to
time & significant, degree of market risk.

Details of the Fund's investment portfalio at the consolidated balance sheet date are disclosed in the Portfolio of
Investments included on page 32.

The Fund, generally seeks to initlate, Increase, reduce or exit positions based on the use of a number of sk
analysis technigues, including but not limited to sensitivity and simulation analysis and value at risk ("WaR")
measuremants, which use stalistical analysis of historical and implied volatiities and movements to determing
confidence levels of the historical maximum potential loss incurred for each position over a determined time
MTF-‘E::'I.T?IEI'HW'IWHH assurance that losses will not occur and past performance is not indicative of future
resulis.

The VaR calculation Is a monte carlo simulation of each of the underlying holdings of the portfolio, which are then
aggregated to produce redurns for one thousand simulated portfolios. The returns are simulated as the
proportional increments of constant drift, constant volatiity stochastic processes, thersby approximatimg
continuous-time geometric Brownlan motion.

The data below indicates the VaR of the Fund's financial instruments, measured as the polential 1 day loss in
value from adverse changes in fund pricas, Interest rates and forelgn exchange rales using a 99% confidence
level.

31 July 2017 31 July 2016
Overall Market VaR (99%) {6.30)% (6.49)%

25
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)

{a) Other price risk

Prica rigk is the risk that the value of the investments will fluciuate as a resull of changes in markel prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or curency risk), whethar caused by factors specific 1o an individual
investment, ils issuer or all factors affecting all invesiments traded in the market.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard investment and borrowing restrictions as defined in the
Prospectus. The Fund's invesiment resirictions are monitored on a regular basis by the Trustes of the Fund and
reviewed guarerly by the Manager, There are specific guidelines in place Tor monitoring and reporting breaches,
and situations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

(b} Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invast in financial instruments and anter into transactions denominated in curmencies other than its
functional currency, Consegquently, the Fund is exposed fo risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative o
other foreign currencies may change in @ manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the
Fund's assets or liabililies denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

The Fund's currency risk is managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser In accordance with policies
and procedures in place. All currency exposure at the portiolio level is hedged into the currency of the refevant
unit class on 8 monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund's ovesafl currency positions and
exposures are monitored on a monthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund also offers redeemabie parlicipating unilts denominaled in Euro and British Pound Sterfing exposing the
Fund o foreign currency risk, This risk is mifigated by the Fund entering into foreign exchange contracls as
described further in nate 12,

The following tables sel out the Fund's total exposura to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to the foreign
currencies of monalary assets and kabilities as at 31 July 2017 and 31 July 2016.

31 July 2017
Monatary Assels Tatal
Currency and Liabilities Forward FX MNet
US$000 US$'000 Us$'000
British Pound Starding - 12413 12413
Eurg - 1.618 1,518
31 July 2018
Monetary Assels Total
Currancy and Liabilities Forward FX Met
USS000 US$'000 US3'000
British Pound Sterling - 9,951 9,951
Eura - 1,087 1,087

() Interest rate fsk

The majority of the Fund's financial assels are investmants in investment funds which neither pay inlerast nor
have @ maturity date. The Fund is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
level of markel inlerest rates on the fair value of underlying investiments which the Fund has invested in,

The Fund has borrowed USS$1,007,065 (2016: USS4,459,243) inclusive of interest at year end. To minimise ils
interest rate risk the Fund enters into floating rate loan agreements. The interest rale prevailng atl the
consolidated balance sheet date is 2.46% (2016 1.729%). At 31 July 2017, had interest rates increased or
decreased by 1% during the year with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease with respact to
the NAV of the Fund would ba +/~ US$10,071 (31 July 2016: +/- US$44,5592).

Other assets and liabilities bear mo interes! rate risk excepl for cash balances of USS4,219.821 (2016:
LIS524,157) which are subject to the variable interest rates.
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HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED}
Liguidity risk

The main liability of the Fund is the redamption of any units that invastors wish to redeem and koans payable to
HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited, The risk is that tha Fund might not be able to liquidate investrent positions in
order to repay amounts demanded by its unithobders.

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with policies
and procedures in place. It Is not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited partnerships or
other vehicles that have no liguidity. The Fund's overall liquidity risks are menltored on a8 monthly basis by the
Manager.

The Fund's investiment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some of which certain to the management of
liquédity risk and concentrations thereof are monitored on a monthly basis by the Trustes of the Fund, There are
specific guidelines in place for monitoring and reporting breaches, and situations where holdings come close to
restriction levels,

The Manager may limit the number of Units in the Fund which may be redeamed on any Dealing Day (o not more
than & percentage of the total number of Units in Issus immaediately before such date. Any Unils failing to be
redeemed upon the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will be camied forward to the next Dealing Day and
shall be redeemed pro rata in priodty fo any other Units in respect of which a Redemption Motice has
subsequently bean received.

At 31 July 2017 and 31 July 2016 there were no restrictions in place on any of the investee funds which would
lirnit the Fund's ability to redeam its investmant holdings.

All of the Fund's financial liabilities are due within cne month, including the koan which is repayable on demand.
Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Fund.

The Fund will be exposed to a credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk of setlemant
default,

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awalting settement. Risk redating to
unsettied transactions Is considered small due to the short settlement periad invelved and the high cradit quality
of the brokers and counterparties used. The Manager monitors the credit rating and financial positions of the
brokers used to further mitigate the credit risk of underlying investments. In addition, the Fund Is indirectly
exposed to the credit risk of the underlying investes funds.

Substantially all of the assets of the Fund are held by Stale Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Sub-
Custodian®). Cash balances are held by the Sub-Custodian and HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited (the “Trustee).
The Funds cash is maintained within the Sub-Custodian's sub-custodial network in segregated accounts.
Bankruptey or ingolvency of the Sub-Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respect to securities held by the
Sub-Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Manager monitars its risk by monitoring the credit quality of the Sub-
Custodian of the Fund. The credit rating of State Street Corporation, the parent company of the Sub-Custodian at
31 July 2017 was A (31 July 2016: A). The cradit rating of HSBC Hoddings plc, the ultimate parent of the Trustes,
at 31 July 2017 was A1 (31 July 2018: A1) rated by Moody's Ralings Agency. The Trustee is no longer separately
rated.

Fair value hierarchy
FRS 102 Section 11.27 on "Fair Value: Disclosura” requires disclosure relating to the fair wvalue hierarchy in which

fair value measurements are categorised for assets and liabilities. The disclosures are based on a three-level fair
value hierarchy for the Inputs used [n valuation techniques to measure fai value,
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fgir value hierarchy 8s reguired under FRS 102 is based on the valuation inpuls used to fair valse the
financial assets and Habiliies and consideration of the market acthvily for each individual financial assel and
liability. The definitions for Levels 1, 2 and 3 are sel out below.

Lavel 1: The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or lisbilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed using markat
data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: Inputs are unobsarvable (i.e. for which markel data iz unavailable) for the asset or liability.

The leval in tha fair valua hierarchy within which the fair value measurement was categorised in s entiraty was
delermined on the basis of the lowest level input that was significant to the fair value measurement in its entirely.
For this purpose, the significance of an input was assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.

i a fair value measurement used observable inpuls thal required significant adjustment based cn unobservable
inputs, that measurement was 8 Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a paricular input to the fair
value measurement in ils enlirely required Jedgement, considering faclors specific to the asset or liability. The
determination of what constituled “obsarvable” required significant judgement by the Manager.

The Manager considered observable data to be markel data that was readily availlable, regularly distributed or
updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in
the relevant market.

(a] Higrarchy analysis

The following tables provide an analysis of the fair value hisrarchy of the Fund’s financial assels and liabilities,
measured at fair value at 31 July 2017,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uss'o00 UsSs'000 USE'000 Uss'0o0
Assots
Financial assels ai fair value through
profil of loss:
Investment funds - 60,560 - 60,560
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 5 = ]
Total Assets - 60,565 - 60,565
Lovel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Uss'o0n US5'000 Uss'o00 Uss'0o0
Liabilities
Financial assets at fair valua through
profit or loss:
Forward foreign exchange contracts - (44} - (44}
Total Liabilities - (44) = {44}
28
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HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

14

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
(8} Hisrarchy analysis

The following table provides an analysis of the fair value hierarchy of the Fund's financial assets and Rabilities,
measured at fair value at 31 July 2016;

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$'000 uss'000 Us$'000 Uss'o00
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Invastment funds - 60,358 E 60,358
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 45 i 45
Total Assets - 60,403 - 60,403
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uss'ooo us$o00 ussooo Us$000
Liabilities
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Forward foreign exchange confracts - (1) - (1)
Total Liabilities - (1) - {1}

(b} Transfers batween lovels of the fair value hierarchy
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair vaiue hierarchy during the financial year.

Leverage

Whara a fund permits leverage, the underlying wolatility of a fund will be significantly greater than would otherwise
have been the case without the permitted leverage. Whilst this gives a fund the ability to participate in higher
returns associaled with greater exposure, it also gives a fund exposure to increased losses whare markets in
general and a fund in particular, invest in assets where prices suffer declines.

Cartaln Investrment funds in which a fund may invest use matenal levels of leverage and are not limited in efther
their borrawing capacily nor in thair level of margin commitment. The total value of positions held by these funds
may axceaed thelr NAV's. The leverage acquired offers the possibility of achieving a much greater overall return,
but also Increases the fund’s volalility and carries the risk of total loss of the amount invested, Please refer to
Mote 11 for details of borrowing.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital of the Trusi is represanied by the net assets atiributable to holders of redeemable participating units.
The Trust is subject to monthly redemption requests of the unitholders.

The Trust's aim with respect 1o management of its capital is to safeguard its ability to continuse as a going
CONCEITL

The Manager monilors capital on the basis of the value of nel assels attribulable to holders of redeemabla
participating units. As detailed in Note 13, the Fund’s investment restrictions, as defined in the Prospectus, some
af which pertain to tha management of liquidity risk and concentrations thereof Include resirictions in respect of
invesiment in closed-ended funds, restrictions in respect of redemplions, restrictions in respect of the percentage
holding alowabla in any Individual investment fund.

Liquidity risk is monitored on a continuous basis by the Trustee of the Fund. There are specific guidelines in place
for monitaring and reporting breaches, and siluations where holdings come close to restriction levels.

23
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

A5 detailed in Mote 11, the Fund also has a loan facility available to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched
settternent dates on purchase and sale transaclions and to fund redemptions; and for invesiment purposes,
subject to @ maximum of 10% of the Fund's net asset value, to facililate additional investment in [nvesiment
Funds.

15 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up®, and will not be
distributed bul will be retatned in the Fund and reflectad in the NAV per unit.

16 SIDE POCKET

During the year endad 31 July 2008, the Manager was advised thal the Discus Non US Side Holdings Ltd, in
which the Fund held shares, fled a bankruptcy petition due to an unexpeciad incident and the manager of Discus
Fund Limiled set up a side pocket (the "Discus Side Pocket’). The Fund was issuad shares in the Discus Side
Pocket.

The Manager and HSB8C Privale Bank (Guernsey) Limiled (the “Trustee”) created a side pocket in the Fund (the
*Fund Side Pockel”) as al 30 Seplember 2007, and shares in the Discus Side Pocket were transferred oul of the
Fund's portiolio, and into the Fund Side Pocket As gt the fransfar date, the investment in Discus Fund Limited
represenied 4% of the Fund's total invesiment perifolio valuation. Shares of the Discus Side Pocket therefore do
not form part of the Fund's portfolio for valuation purposes.

The Manager maintains a register of all shareholders in the Fund Iimmediately prior to 30 Seplember 2007
(*Existing Shareholders”), and the Trustee holds the Fund Side Pocket for the benefit of Existing Shareholders.
Existing Shareholders who elected lo redeem their shares in the Fund will confinue Io be entifed o proceads
received in the Fund Side Pocket after tha date of redemption. Subject to a minimum transaction size of US$100,
proceeds from the Discus Side Pocket which have been recaived in the Fund Side Packet have been destributed
1o all Existing Shareholders in proportion 1o their holding in the Fund either.

1. I the Existing Shareholder conlinues 1o hold shares in the Fund, as additional shares in the Fund which are
purchased at the nel assel value prevailing al ihe date of purchase; or
2. If al the date of the distribution the Existing Sharehaolders had redeemed their entire holding, in cash.

The Discus Fund Limited included in the Fund Side Pockel is disclosed on page 32 within the porifolio of
investments.

The Discus Side Pocket has made distributions since the bankruptcy petition was filed and the Manager
continues 1o monitor the position haid on an ongaing basis.

17 FOREIGM EXCHANGE RATES

The following foreign exchange rates were used to translate assels and liabilities into the reporting currency (US
Dollars):

As al As at

31 July 2017 31 July 2016

Euro 0.85186 0.9011
Sterling 07831 0.7594

18 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 July 2017 and 31 July 2016 the Fund did not have any significant conlingent commitments ar contingent
liabilitias.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 CONTROLLING PARTIES

b

22

23

The Manager does not consider there to ba an immediate or utimate controliing party of the Fund.

HIGHEST AND LOWEST NAV PER UNIT DURING THE YEAR

Highest Lowaest
Unit Class NAV per Unit MAV per Unit
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund — USD Class 166.18 158.27
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - EUR Class 149,88 140.58
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund — GBP Class 162.14 -
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Hedged R Class 117.70 111.23
HSBC Trading AdvamiEdge Fund = USD R Class 121.19 116.368
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund — GBP R Class 123.04 117.03
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund = USD S Class 100.50 a7.05
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund — GBP S Class 102.03 9822
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — EUR 5 Class 101.50 ar.s7

* This Unit Class was fully redesmed on 28 February 2017,
SIGMNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

Tha Fund launched Sterling S Class on 30 November 2016.
The Fund launched US Dollar S Class on 30 December 2016.
The Fund launched Euro § Class on 31 January 2017.

The Sterfing Class was fully redeemed on 28 February 2017.

Tha units of the Sterfing Class and Sterfing R Class of the Trust were de-listed from the Irish Stock Exchange on
3 January 2017,

Thera wera no ather significant events affecting the Fund during the year,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Thera wera no significant events affecting the Fund since year end that require amendment to or disclosura in the
consolidated financial statemants.

RECONCILIATON OF MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING
UMNITS

The MNAV per these consolidated financlal stalements s inclusive of redemplions of US$7S5087 (2016
U352,575,412) which were posted to the Fund after the last Dealing MAV had been finalised. The fable below
reconcies the movement from the Dealing NAV to the NAY per these consolidated financial statements, laking
into account the alorementioned adjustments.

As at As at

31 July 2017 31 July 2016

Us$'000 Us§'000

NAV a5 calculaled in accordance with the Prospectus (Dealing NAV) 62,533 56,831
Redemptions not reflecied in the Dealing NAYV {796) __[2.575)

Net Asset Value per these consolidated financial statementis 61,797 54,256

=yl

115/192



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HEBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 31 JULY 2017 (UNAUDITED)

Security Description Holding Market value % of total
Us$'000 nit assets
Mutual Funds

U5, Deollar (2016: 111.25%)

AHL (Cayman) SPC - Class A1 Evolution USD Shares B6.212202 10,718 17.35%
AHL Evolution Frontier Fund 1,819,682 2T 3.43%
Crabel Fund SPC Lid. 1,500 1,497 2.42%
Crabel Fund SPC Ltd. - Segregated Portlolio - Series 95 4,823 4,925 7.97%
MS Lyns UCITS Fund USD - Class B 4953 3,830 B.20%
Tewksbury Invesiments Fund 585 11,904 19.25%
Transtrend Fund Alliance = Omnitrend (USD) 2,066 4,360 7.06%
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Lid, GSY 1,157 6,363 10.30%
Two Sigma Investment Fund Lid, - Class A 4,572 5813 9.41%
Winten Futures Fund Lid. 23,000 2,295 371%
Winton Futures Fund Lid. - Class B 6784 B, 737 10,90%
Portfolio of investments 60,560 98.00%
Discus Non US Side Holdings Lid. - Class 5° 11,076 E %
Met current assets 1,237 2.00%
Total nat assets 61,787 100.00%:

* Sea Note 16 for information in relation to this investmant holding.
** Mo market value is shown for this security s the value is less than US$500.

3 July 2017 3 July 2018 31 July 2015
Redeemable participating units in issue

US Dollar Class 230,027.98 25917991 31151553
Euro Class 241212 3.961.79 2,007.39
Sterling Class™** - 208943 253507
Euro Hedged R Class 1,075.61 S0ETD 356409
US Dollar R Class 8,236.00 5512.00 2212422
Sterling R Class 3235214 48,035.56 100,022.11
5 Class (US Dollar)™ 94.015.06 - =
£ Class (Sterling)* 5358046 - -
S Class (Euro)*™ 8,547.57 - -
MWAV per unit

US Dollar Class US5158.54 Us§171.11 US5151.04
Euwrc Clags EURY41.52 EUR154,52 EUR137.19
Sterling Class™™" - GBP166.94 GBP145.97
Euwro Hedged R Class EUR111.74 EUR121.50 EUR10E.89
US Dollar R Class LSS117.34 LS5124.67 US8100.00
Sterling R Class GBP117.97 GBP126.58 GBP110.55
S Class (US Dollar)™ UsSEaT .96 - -
5 Class (Sterling)* GBP39.05 - -
S Class (Euro)*™ EURS8.37 - -

*This Unit Class launched on 30 November 2016,

**This Unit Class launched on 30 December 2016,

***This Unit Class launched on 31 January 2017.

****This Unit Clags was fully redeemead on 28 February 2017,

a2
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 31 JULY 2017 (UNAUDITED) {CONTINUED)

Total NAV

US Dollar Class (USS'000)

Euro Class (EUR000)

Sterling Class (GBP'OO0)™**
Euro Hedged R Class (EUR'000)
US Dollar R Class {US$'000)
Sterling R Class {GBP'000)

S Clags (US Dollar) (USS'000)™
5 Class (Sterling) (GBP'000)*

S Class (Euro) (EUR'D00)**

*This Unit Class launched on 30 November 2016,
**This Unit Class launched on 30 December 2016,
***This Unit Class launched on 31 January 2017,

****This Unit Class was fully redeemed on 28 February 2017,

Portfolio Classification
Listed securities
Unlisted securities

Soctor Allocation
Managed Fulures

3 July 2017
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31 July 2016 3 July 2015
44,346 47,050
612 BBT

350 ara

72 381

car 2413

6,080 11,067

% of Portfolio

24.74

75.26

100.00

As at Az at

3 July 2017 31 July 2016
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017 (UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Description Mominal Cost
USE'000
Tewksbury Investment Fund Lid, 2,500 2,503
Tewksbury Investments Fund 128 2,503
Winton Futures Fund Lid, 23,000 2,300
AHL (Cayman) SPC - Clazs A1 Evolution USD Shares 1,344 BOT 2,123
Crabel Fund SPC Lid. 1,500 1,500
Transtrend Fund Alllance - Omnitrend 443 1,000
M5 Lynx UCITS Fund USD - Class B 1,085 950
AHL Evoglution Frontier Fund 466,941 SO0
Sales
Description Mominal Proceeds
LUS$'000
Tewksbury Investment Fund Lid. 2,500 2,503
Two Sigma Compass Enhanced Cayman Fund Ltd. GBY 358 2,247
AHL (Cayman) SPC - Class A1 Evolulion USD Shares 1,210,118 2,000
Winton Futures Fund Lid, - Class B 1.918 1,850
Two Sigma Investment Furd Lid, - Clasa A 585 BOO
Tewksbury Investments Fund ar 538

*Significant portfiolio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceeding 1% of the net
assets of the Fund at tha start of the vear. In any evenl, 8l @ minimum, the 20 largest purchases and 20 largest salas
must be shown,

There were no other purchases and sales during the year ended 31 July 2017.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

FERFORMAMNCE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017 (UNAUDITED)

Performance Overview

Year ended 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HSEC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - US Dollar Class (6.76)% 13.28% 13.98%  1.36% (11.18)%
3M USD LIBOR+3.5% 4.63%  4.10%  223%  2.22% 2.25%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Class (B41)% 1283%  1452%  1.3%  (2284)%
3M EUR LIBOR+3.5% 3.27%  345%  209%  2.23% 2.15%
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund - Starling Class™™" NiA  13.59%  1502%  1.29%  (14.72)%
IM GBP LIBOR+3.5% MAA  419%  238%  2.36% 2.35%
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — Euro Hedged R

Clags (B.03)% 1367% 1562%  2.20% NIA
3M EUR LIBOR+3.5% 327%  345% 208%  2.23% 2.15%
HSBEC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — US Dollar R Class (5.88)% 14.28% 1511%  2.38% NA
3M USD LIBOR+3.5% 463%  410%  223%  2.20% 2.25%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund — Sterling R Class {B.B0)%  14.50% 16.15%  2.64% NIA
3M GBP LIBOR+3.5% 403%  4.189%  238%  236% 2.35%
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund = 5 Class (US

Dallary*™ MIA NIA (17 NiA NIA
3M USD LIBOR+3.5% 4.63% NiA MiA NiA NiA
HSBEC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — § Class {Sterling)™ NiA, NI /A MIA ANIA,
3M GBP LIBOR+3.5% 4,03% MiA NIA NIA NIA
HSBC Trading AdvaniEdge Fund — 5 Class (Eurg)** hiA, WA NIA A NiA
3M EUR LIBOR+3.5% 3.27T% MiA MiA WA MR
HEBC Trading AdvanlEdge Fund - Institutional Class

{Swiss Franc)” MiA (1Y NiA NiA (14.28)%
3M CHF LIBOR+3.5% NiA, NiA NiA NIA 2.08%

“The Institutional Class (Swiss Franc) was fully redeemed on 30 April 2014,
**This Unit Class launched on 30 November 2016,

***This Unit Class launched on 30 December 2016,

****This Unit Class launched on 31 January 2017.

*****This Unit Class was fully redeamed on 28 Fabruary 2017.

Past performance is not indicative of future performance. The performance data does not Include
commissions and costs incurred on the Issue and redemption of units.
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HSBC
( 29 11 )
( ) ( . )
a. 63,164,363.63 7,077,567
b. 40,164.20 4,500
C. (a-b) 63,124,199.43 7,073,067
q 244,665.90
’ 2,412.12
o 162.01 18,153

142 .64 18,944
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0
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0
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HSBC
(
) HSBC
HSBC
29 11 ( 8,893.2 )
( )
( 29 11
)
HSBC
2,123.4
HSBC Portfolio Selection Fund
HSBC
i} B} 63.1
HSBC Uni Folio
HSBC
44.0
HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund
HSBC UCITS
UCITS 162.2
HSBC UCITS AdvantEdge Fund
6,500.5
Various Real Estate and Private
Equity Syndicates
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HSBC
2016 12 31
2016 2015
9,184 1,029 19,565 2,192
160 18 158 18
31,609,713 3,541,868 32,640,748 3,657,396
, 38,965,543 4,366,089 21,521,951 2,411,535
658,250 73,757 500,000 56,025
12 427,448 47,896 - -
71,660,954 8,029,610 54,662,699 6,124,955
10 13,798,711 1,546,146 10,790,603 1,209,087
22,911,390 2,567,221 6,600,631 739,601
1,867,398 209,242 1,383,265 154,995
10 3,543,124 397,007 2,068,039 231,724
42,120,623 4,719,616 20,842,538 2,335,406
29,540,331 3,309,994 33,820,161 3,789,549
29,549,675 3,311,041 33,839,884 3,791,759
11 157,762 17,677 157,762 17,677
29,391,913 3,293,364 33,682,122 3,774,082
29,549,675 3,311,041 33,839,884 3,791,759
2017 28
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HSBC

2016 12 31

2016 2015 ( )
66,847,324 7,490,243 56,931,851 6,379,214
21,054,032 2,359,104 21,861,985 2,449,635
13,704,420 1,535,580 11,002,737 1,242,941
11,414,814 1,279,030 - -
765,401 85,763 - -
4,173,070 467,592 4,382,189 491,024
889,493 99,668 1,084,574 121,527
388,121 43,489 943,787 105,751
346,407 38,815 549,755 61,600
335,524 37,595 66,625 7,465
898,107 100,633 229,431 25,708
116,783 13,086 232,466 26,048
, 10,381 1,163 7,894 885
(54,096,553) (6,061,519)  (40,451,443) (4,532,584)
12,750,771 1,428,724 16,480,408 1,846,630
(40,980) (4,592) - -
12,709,791 1,424,132 16,480,408 1,846,630
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2016 12 31
2016 2015

12,709,791 1,424,132 16,480,408 1,846,630

10,381 1,163 7,894 885
12,720,172 1,425,295 16,488,302 1,847,514
(18,029,290) (2,020,182) 1,704,183 190,954
21,278,083 2,384,209 3,161,825 354,282
15,968,965 1,789,323 21,354,310 2,392,750
15,968,965 1,789,323 21,354,310 2,392,750
(17,000,000) (1,904,850)  (17,000,000) (1,904,850)
(17,000, 000) (1,904,850)  (17,000,000) (1,904,850)
(1,031,035) (115,527) 4,354,310 487,900
32,640,748 3,657,396 28,286,438 3,169,495
31,609,713 3,541,868 32,640,748 3,657,396
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HSBC
2016 12 31

2016 157,762 17,677 33,682,122 3,774,082 33,839,884 3,791,759
- - 12,709,791 1,424,132 12,709,791 1,424,132

107.76 - - (17,000,000) (1,904,850) (17,000,000) (1,904,850)

2016 12 31 157,762 17,677 29,391,913 3,293,364 29,549,675 3,311,041
2015 157,762 17,677 34,201,714 3,832,302 34,359,476 3,849,979
- - 16,480,408 1,846,630 16,480,408 1,846,630

107.76 - - (17,000,000) (1,904,850) (17,000,000) (1,904,850)

2015 12 31 157,762 17,677 33,682,122 3,774,082 33,839,884 3,791,759
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HSBC 1986 9 25
HSBC
HSBC
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
HDSAP 100%
2016 HV 100%
2016 KKR @ 100%
2017 @ 100%
(1) 2016 22
(2) 2016 11 23
(@) IFRS
2008 IFRS
®)
IFRS 2018 IFRS
IFRS 15 2018 IFRS

15
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10

HSBC

2016 12 31 14,242,946 2015 8,367,692

197,692 2015 343,181
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2016 1 1 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
2016 12 31 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
2016 1 1 142,937 1,027,736 1,170,673
10,381 - 10,381
2016 12 31 153,318 1,027,736 1,181,054
2016 12 31 9,184 - 9,184
2015 12 31 19,565 - 19,565
2016 12 31 HSBC C.l.
31,609,713 2015 32,640,748 2016
2015
2016 2015
21,837,437 14,186,786
14,199,086 5,860,149
2,929,020 1,475,016
38,965,543 21,521,951
2012 12 13 2012 10
2013 10
2015 29
2015 10
2015 10%
2E
%
40,980 2015
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2016 2015
22,911,390 6,600,631
1,867,398 1,383,265
24,778,788 7,983,896
2016 2015
13,464,566 10,439,277
334,145 351,326
3,543,124 2,068,039
17,341,835 12,858,642
2016 2015
100,000 100,000
157,762 157,762
2016 2015
(11,922,083) (11,527,865)
(8,575,588) (7,114,702)
(708,656) (807,092)
10 13,464,566 2015 10,797,897
658,250 2015 500,000
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427,448
HSBC C.1.
PBCI PBCI
2016 12 31 PBCI 889,493
2015 1,084,574
116,783 2015 232,466
13
(@)
HSBC
12 31
2016 2015
658,250 500,000
31,609,713 32,640,748
38,965,543 21,521,951
427,448 }
71,660,954 54,662,699
(b)

HSBC
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©

2016 2015

24,929,713 915,630

5,194,584 550,809

1,949,348 210,339

105,047 18,021

98,931 -

1,714,518 96

16,685,304 -

3,798,690 446,959

70,878 -

6,345 -

348,300 -

2016 12 31 %
%

2016 2015

183,722 45,781

115,803 49,888

31,007 10,517

891 901

1,216 -

26,721 5
(d)
)
Q)
()]

HSBC
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HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
(h)
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
/
HSBC
HSBC
14
2016 11 30 HSBC
100 2016 12 100,000
HSBC HGAM
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2016 12 31
25 100,000 123,845
25
10 10,000 12,385
10
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Restated
Noltes 2016 2005
LIss LUss
NONLCURREWT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 9,184 19,565
Investment in subsidiaries 2 160 158
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis t 31,609,713 32,640,748
Amounts due from funds under management 3&7 38,965,543 21,521,931
Amount due from fellow subsidiary company H58,250 500,000
Amount due from related party 12 427448 -
Current assets 71 660,954 54,662 6099
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Commission 10 13,798,711 10,790,603
Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companics & 22911390 6,600,631
Amounts dee to related companies G 1,867,358 1,383,265
Other creditors 10 3,543,124 2,068,039
Current habilities 42,120,623 20,842 538
Met current assets 29,540,331 33,820,161
Met assets 29549675 33539484
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Called wp share capital 11 157,762 157,762
Retained camings 29391913 33,682,122
Tedal sharcholders' eguity 29,549 675 33,830,884

The financial staternents on pages 6 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and

Gl ol

C ROSUMEK
DIRECTOR

are signed on its behalf by:

T CORFIELD
DIRECTOR
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 6
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
Restated
2016 2015

Uss Uss Uss USs
INCOME
Management, Managing
Trustee, Administration,
Performance and
Placement agent fees 3 06,847,324 36,931,831
EXPENSES
Commissions 3 21,054,032 21,861,985
Investment advisory fees 3 13,704 420 11,092,737
Performance foes 11,414,814 -
Asset Management fecs 765401 -
Trustee, custody and
Transfer Agency foes 4,173,070 4,382,189
Salaries and benefits ERO 493 1,084,574
Management fees paid 4
{0 group cormpantcs 388,121 943,787
Foreign exchange loss z 346,407 549,755
Legal and professional 335,54 66,625
Other expenses BOR. 107 220,431
Fee paid 1o non=
executive directors 116,783 232,466
Depreciation 285 10,381 7,894

(54,096,553) (400,451,443}

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEFORE TAXATION 12,750,771 16,480,408
Taxation 8 (40,980) i
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 12,709,791 16,480,408

The Company has no other components of comprehensive income other than the income for the

year

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these Minancial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

AT 1 JANUARY 2016

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (US$107.76 per
share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

AT 1 JANUARY 2015

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year

Transactions with owners,
recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (LS5107.76 per
share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Share Capital Retained Eamings Tatal Equity
LSS Uss Uss

157,762 33,682,122 33,839,584

- 12,709,791 12,709,791

- (17,000,000) {17, 000,000)

157,762 29,391,913 29,549,675
Share Capatal Retained Earnings Total Equity
LI5S Uss Uss

157,762 34,201,714 34350476

- 16,480,408 16,480,408

- {17,000,000) (177, D00, 0

157,762 33,682,122 33,839 884
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HEBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 9

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Motes 2016 2015
Uss L&S
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total Comprehensive income 12,709,791 16,480,408
Adjustments for:
= Depreciation 5 10,381 7,894
Cash flow from operating activitics befiore changes in
working capital 12,720,172 16,488,302
Changes in working capital:
= Increase in other assels (18,029.290) 1,704,183
- Increase in other liabilities 21,278,083 3,161,825
15,068 965 21,354,310
Met cash generated from operating activitics 15,968,965 21,354,310
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid to shareholders (17,000,000 (17,000,000)
Cash used in financing activitics (17,000,000 {17,000,000)
NET (DECREASEVINCREASE IN CASH AND CASH (1,031,035) 4,354,310
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT | JANUARY 32,640,748 28,286,438
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 31,609,713 32,640,748

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 10

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “Company™) was registered in Guemsey on 25 September 1986,
The Company iz domiciled in Guernsey and a whaolly owned subsidiary of HSBC Global Asset Management
Limited which is registered in the United Kingdom. The ultimate parent company is HSBC Holdings ple, which
15 a publicly quoted company, incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The principal activities of the Company are to act as Manager, Managing Trustee and Director of a vanety of
funds and corporate director of associated subsidiary companics, The Company’s wholly owned subsidiarics
are listed below.

Name of Entity Couniry of| Percentage | Nature of Entity
Formation | (rwnership
Emerging Growih Real Estate Fund [1 GP Limited Ciuernsey 10055 General Partner
Vintage 111 Special Situations GP Limited Guernsey 100% General Partner
Vintage | Secondary GP Limited Giuernsey 10085 General Partner
Secondary Club Deal 11 GP Limited Guemsey | 100% General Pariner
Secondary Club Deal 1 GP Limited Guernsey 100% General Partner
HDSAP GP Limited Guernsey 1005 General Partner
Vinlagc 2016 HY GP Limited Cuernsey 1005 General Pariner
Vintage 2016 KKR GP Limited 'V Cuermnsey | 100% General Pariner
Vintage 2017 Athyrium GP Limited ' Guernsey 100% General Partner

Mincorporated on 22 August 2016, PIncorporated on 23 November 2018,

{a) The Company prepares its finangial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") which give a true and fair view and are in compliance with the Companies (Guemsey)
Law, 2008, IFRS comprisc accounting standards issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board
and 1ts predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body,

(b} At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretation, which
will become relevant to the Company but have not been applied in the financial statements, were in issue
Tt mot yet effective;

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement™ (effective for periods on or after 1
January 2018). The Company is assessing the impact of IFRS 9;

IFRS 15 *Revenue from contract with customers” (effective from periods beginning on or after 1
Janupary 2018). The company is assessing the impact of [FRS 15,

These standards will be adopted when they become effective.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 1

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(¢} The preparation of financial information requires the use of estiimates and assumptions about future
eonditions. These estimates and assumptions require management to make judgments about the camying
value used in obtaining the Net Asset Value (“NAV™) which are not readily available from sources other
than the underlying fund administrator, due to the time lag between the financial statements being
prepared and the release of the final NAV. These estimates and assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors thet are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

et

The Company will continue to review whether these estimates that have been made represent an accuratc
representation of the financial information provided. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected,

In the opinien of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's comprehensive statement of income, statement of financial position and
statemnent of cash flow in these financial statements have been made.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Company's financial statements:

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency™).  These financial statements are
presented in US dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Forcign exchanpe

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of ransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date.  Any
resulting exchange differences are included in the profit or loss for the period. Non-monetary assets and
lishilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency using the rate of exchange at the date of the initial transaction. MNen-monctary assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the rate of
exchange at the date the fair value was determined.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated a1 cost less depreciation.

Depreciation is calenlated at the following annual rates so as 1o write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method:

Furniture, fixture and fittings 10%

Computer hardware and related software 33 113%

Cemputer software costs, other than those specifically related to hardware, are fully written off and are
expensed as incurred.

I i Subsidini

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost. All subsidiades are wholly owned General Partners, as
detailed on page 10 which are incorporated in Guemsey.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 12

MWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuwed)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments
that are readily convenible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Such investments are normally those with less than three months® to maturity from the date of
acguisition, and include cash, cusrent aceouts with banks and money at call to banks,

Revenue recognition

Management focs, managing trustee fees and administration fees; fiduciary income are accounted for on an
accruals basis. Performance fees are recognised when the entitlement to performance fee is reasonably
established.

1 FEES
M and i 5 ; fiduci

The Company receives management fees and managing trustee fees based on a percentage of the underlying
net asset value or total commitments of the respective funds. Management and trustee fees arc recognised
on an accruals basis, Fiduciary income from the Company’s regulated fideciary activities totalling
US$784,089 (2015: USS1,230,788) has been earned in the year ended 31 December 2016,

Commissi

The Company, at its discretion, has agreed to pay return commissions to those branches, fellow subsidiaries,
affiliates and associates of the ISBC Group entities and certain approved third parties introducing
subscribers to funds under management. The return commissions fall into two calegories: firstly a portion
of the initial charge {where applicable) and secondly an ongoing trailer commission based on the net asset
value of monics introduced by units and which remain associated with the particular unit. Commissions
are accounted for on an accruals basis and the commissions pavable at the vear ¢nd are detailed i note 10,

Imvestment advisory fees
The Company pays investment advisory fees to fellow subsidianies, associates of the HSBC Group entities

and third parties providing investment advice to the funds under management, Investment advisory fees
are accounted for on an accruals basis,

Manager’s performance fees
Under the management agreements with various entities and structures, and subject to performance of the
underlying vehicle, the Company is entitled to a performance fee. The Company has the ability o share
any such performance fees received with associates and investment advisers, as appropriate. Performance
fiees totaling USS14,242 946 have been carned in the vear ended 31 December 2016 (2015:U858,367,602).
Performance fees are recognised when the right to receive performance fee income is established.

4, MANAGEMENT FEES PAID TO GROUP COMPANIES

Management fees paid to group companies include rental charges of US$197,692 (2015: US$343,181)

147/192



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 13
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Fumiture, fixtures and Computer Total
fittings hardware &
related software
Uss Uss Uss
COST
At 1 Jampary 2016 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
At 31 December 2016 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
DEPRECIATION
At 1 Jampary 2016 142 937 1,027,736 1,170,673
Charge for year 10,381 - 10,381
At 31 December 2016 153,318 1,027,736 1,181,054
NET BOOK AMOUNT
At 31 December 2016 9,184 - 9,184
At 31 December 2015 19,565 - 19,565

fi. CASIT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2016 are halances with a related party, HSBC
Private Bank (C.L) Limited, of USS3 1,609,713 (2015: US$32,640,748). During 2016 the Company earned

no interest on these balances (201 5: USSnil).

7. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Management and administration fees
Performance fees
Chler fees
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HEBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 14

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continwed)

8. TAXATION

Following the passing of the Income tax {Zero 10) (Company Intermediate Rate) (Amendment) (Guemsey)
Ordinance 2012 on 13 December 2012, with effect from 1 January 2013 the Company’s income anising,
net of deductible expenses, from specific regulated fiduciary business is taxed at the company intermediate
rate of 10% (MNote 3 shows the fiduciary income eamed in the year). Subsequently on 29 July 2015, The
Income Tax (Zero 100 (Company Intermediate Rate) {Amendment) (Guemnsey) Ordinance, 2015 (the
“Amendment™) was passed, effective from | January 2015, The scope of taxable business activities, subject
to the company intermediate rate of 10%, was extended to include income from the administration of
controlled investments. The Board of directors considered the existing revenue from the adnmimistration of
controlled invesiments to be oul of scope as the Amendment, section 2E, included only provision of
administration services to controlled investments by unconnected third parties. The remainder of the
Company's income is taxed at the company standard rate of 0%. The Company has US$40,930 expense
in relation to the taxation on its fiduciary business (200 5: USSml).

%, AMOUNTS DUE TO GROUP COMPANIES

Restated

X6 2015

L3S =g

Amounts due 1o fellow subsidiary companies 22,911,3%0 6,600,631
Amounis due to related companies 1,867,398 1,383,265
24,778,788 7.983 896

Amounts due o Group Companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand, The amounts stated
do not include commissions payable which are reported in the following note.

10. OTHER LIABILITIES

Restated
2016 2015
LSS LSS
Commission payable — due 1o related companics 13,464,566 10,439,277
Commission payable — due to third parties 334,145 351,326
Other creditors 3,343,124 2,068,039
17,341,835 12,858,642
11, SHARE CAPITAL

2016 2015
Authorized: £ £
100,004 ordinary shares of £1 cach 100,000 100,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid: LSS UES

100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
(translated at historie cost) 137,762 137,762
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 15

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The ardinary shares which represent the equity interests have the following rights attached:

o They carry the right to any fixed dividend as may from time to lime be recommended by the Directors
and declared by the Company;
# They have voting rights with each share carrying one vole;

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions, excepling the amounts due from fellow subsidiary companies, were made on
the terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and have been disclosed in these
financial statements. Amounts due to Group Companies, generated in the normal operating business cycle,
are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand.

Apart from transactions and outstanding balances disclosed in Mote 4, Note 6, Note 7 and Note @ in the
financial statemnents, the Company entered into the following transactions with its fellow subsidiary
companies and related companies duning the year:

2016 2015
Ls% Uss
INCOME STATEMENT
Investment advisory fees {11,922,083) {11,527 865)
Commissions (8,575,588) (7,114,702)
Trustee and custody fees (T08,656) (B07,092)

In addition, Commission due to related parties at the year end was USE13.464,566 (2015
U£S10,797,897) as stated in note 10 and amount due from fellow subsidiary company at the yvear end
was USS658,250 (2015 US$500,000),

Included in current assets is a balance due from related party of $427,448 which represents the expected
recovery of historie overpaid commission from prior periods. This has been offset against Commission

expense in the reporting year,

All staff acting on behalf of the Company are employed by HSBC Private Bank (C.1L) Limited (PBCI).
On a monthly basis, FBCI invoices the Company for stafT utilised in the Company's opcrations. For
the year ended 31 December 2016, PBRCI billed the Company a total of USSER9,493 (2015
US51,084,574) for salaries and benefits.

Non-executive directors fees of USS116,783 (201 5: USSE232,466) were payable in this year.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 16

KWOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that finaneial loss arises from the fallure of a customer or counterparty to meet
its obligations under a contract of fund administration, The Company has standards, policies and
procedures dedicated 1o controlling and monitoring risks from all such activities.

Cash and cash eguivalents are maintained with HSBC Group companics where management considers
the credit risk to be minimal.

Amount due from the funds under management and from fellow subsidiaries, the Company considers
the credit risk to be minimal. The following table provides a breakdown of credit exposure excluding
collateral held or otiver credit enhancemenits:

Al 31 December
2016 2015
Uss Uss
Amount due from fellow subsidiary companies 658,250 500,000
Cash and cash equivalents 31,509,713 32,640,748
Amount due from funds under management 38,965,543 21,521,951
Amounts due from related company 427,448 L
71,660,954 54,662,609

(k) Market risk management
Market risk iz the risk that the value of funds under management decreases with a resultant effect on
incoame,

The Company manages market risk through risk limits approved through various risk commitiees
within the HSBC Group in order to reduce the impact on the Company™s operations.

(c) Foreign exchange exposure
Foreign currency risk i3 the nsk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company”s foreign exchange exposure arises from changes
in the LSS equivalent value of amounts denominated in foreign currencies as zet out below:

2016 25

uss [ B2
ASSETS
Euro 24920713 915,630
British Pound 5,194 584 550,809
Swiss Franc 1,249,348 210,339
Japanese Yen 105,047 18,021
Chinese Yuan 98,931 -
Hong Keong Daollar 1,714,518 %
LIABILITIES
Euro 16,685,304 x
British Pound 1,798,690 446,059
Swiss Franc T0,878 -
Chinese Yuan 6,345 -
Hong Kong Dollar 348,300 -
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13. RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
(&) Foreign exchange exposure (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 pereent strengthening of the US dollar against the following currencies at 31 December 2016
would have resulted in an impact on the profits (losses) shown below. A 5 percent weakening of the
IS dollar would have had the equal but opposite effect 1o the amounts shown below, This analysis

assunesthat-allothervanables in.particular iolesesl rales., SEmaln. conslant

2016

LS5
Eure 183,722
British Pound 115,803
Swiss Franc 31,007
Japanese Yen 201
Chinese Yuan
Heng Kong Dollar

(d) Liguidity risk management

2015
Uss
45,781
49 588
10,517
901

3

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in realising asseis or otherwise

raising funds o meel commitments,

The Company uses various sources to provide a stable funding, These include maintaining bank
balances in instant access call accounts, inter-group funding and the Company's shareholder’s equity.

() Capital risk managerment

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as W maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of called up
share capital and retained eamnings, Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level

of dividends to ordinary sharcholders.

The Company 15 regulated by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission which sets and monitors
capital requirements for the Company as described on page 20. Management regularly monitors the
Company”"s capital to ensure compliance with the requiremenis of the Guemsey Financial Services

Commission.

(1} Inferest risk management

The Company has no exposure to interest rate risk as the Company holds no interest bearing financial

instruments.

(£) Cperalional risk managentent

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising through fraud, unauthorised activities, ervor, omission,
inefficicncy, systems failure or from extemal events. It is inherent to every business organi sation and

covers 4 wide spectrum of issues,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The HSBC Group manages this risk through a controls-based environment in which processcs are
documented, authorisation is independent and transactions are reconciled and moaitored. This is
supported by an independent programme of periedic reviews undertaken by internal awdit, and by
monitoring external operational risk events, which ensures that the HSBC Group stays in line with
best practice and takes account of lessons learmned from publicised operational failures within the
financial services industry,

The HSBC Group has codified itz operational risk management process by issuing a high level
standard. This explains how the HSBC Group manages operational nisk by identiflying, assessing,
maonitoring, controlling and mitigating the risk, rectifying operational risk events, and implementing
any additional procedures required for compliance with local regulatory requirements. The processes
undertaken to manage operational risk are determined by reference to the scale and nature of each
HSBC Group operation. The HSBC Group standard covers the following:

&  Operational risk management responsibility is assigned at a senior management level within the
buziness operation;

o Information systemns are used 1o record the identification and assessment of operational risks and
generate appropriate, regular management reporting;

+ Operational risks are identified by risk assessments covering operational risks facing each business
and rigsks inherent in processes, activities and products. Risk assessment incorporates a regular
review of risks identified to monitor significant changes;

# Operational nsk loss data is collected and reported to senior management. This report covers
aggregate operational risk losses and details of incidents above a materiality threshold; and

*  [Risk mitigation, including insurance, is considered where this is cost-effective.

Local management is responsible ﬂ;lrimplcmmﬁm of the HEBC Group standard on operaticnal risk.

(h) Hepurtational risk management

The safeguarding of HSBC"s reputation 15 of paramount importance to its continued prosperity and is
the responsibility of every member of staff. Reputational risks can arise from social, ethical or
environmental issues, or 48 a consequence of operational risk events, As a banking group, HSBC s
good reputation depends upon the way in which it conducts its business, but it can also be affected by
the way in which elients, to whaom it provides financial services, conduct themselves.

Reputational risks are considered and asscssed by the Board, HSBC Group Management Board, the
Risk Management Commitiee, subsidiary company beards, board commiitees and'or senior
management during the formulation of policy and the establishment of HSBC standards, Standards en
all major aspects of business are sot for HSBC and for individual subsidiaries, businesses and
functions. These policies, which are an integral pant of the internal control systems, are communicated
through manueals and statements of policy and are promulgated through intemal communications and
training. The policies set out operational procedures in all areas of reputational risk, including money
laundering deterrence, environmental impact, anti-corruption measures and employee relations.
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H3BC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 19

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14, CONTROLLING PARTY

Until the 30 November 2016 the Company was a 100% subsidiary of HSBC Investment Holdings
(Guernsey) Limited. On the | December 2016 the issued share capital of the Company, 100,000
Ordinary shares of £1 cach, was sold to HSBC Global Asset Management Limited (*HGAM™). The
ultitnate eontrolling party iz HSBC Holdings Ple.

15, POST BALANCE SHEET EVEMTS

Chairman and Thomas Slaitery was appointed to the board of dircetors taking the vacant role of Chairman,
16. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES

Selected comparatives have been restated to conform with the reporfing period presentation.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED 20

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

uUss
i u u

Mei assets after adjusiments, contingent labilities and risks 46139271
Greater of the 25% Annual Audited Expenditure and £100,000 (US
Dollar equivalents $123,843).
25% of Annual Audited Expenditure (419, 163)
NET SURPLUS FINANCIAL RESOURCES 45,720,108

nidity ui t Test
Net current asscts, less loan to group company 28,882,081
Greater of the 190 % Annual Audited Expenditure and £10,000 (US
Dollar equivalents §12,385).
10% of Annual Audited Expenditure (167 B65)
NET SURPLUS LIQUIDITY 28,714,416
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(1) HSBC €.1) (HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited)( )
29 11 800 ( 9,640 )
60 GY1
3NF
HSBC 20 31
HSBC ( )
(2) HSBC (HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch)( )
HSBC 29 11 797 ( 1,198
1,301 )
() ( ) 29 11 30
UFJ ( 150.33 )
©)) ( ) (State Street Custodial
Services (Ireland) Limited)( )
29 11 200,000 ( 3,007 )
@) ( ) (State Street Fund Services
(Ireland) Limited)( )
29 11 350,000 ( 5,262 )
(5) HSBC (HSBC Alternatire Investments Limited)(
)
29 11 602,000 ( 9,050 )
SW1A1J3B 78

(6) HSBC
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HSBC Securities Services (lreland) DAC

29 11 2.5 376 1,000,002 1,205
HSBC 11 29
HSBC
HSBC 28 30
6,081
(7) HSBC ( HSBC )( )
29 11 197 7,500
® ( )( )
29 20
C))
29 11 781
(1) HSBC «.1.) (HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited)( )
1987
29 10
29 10
(2) HSBC HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch

HSBC
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29 11 10

Tewksbury Investment Fund Ltd.

Tewksbury Investment Fund Ltd.

Stevens Capital Management LP

AHL (Cayman) SPC Evolution

AHL (Cayman) SPC

AHL (Cayman) SPC AHL

Class Al Evolution USD Shares
AHL

AHL
AHL
Man Investments Limited AHL
Winton Futures Fund Ltd
Winton Futures Fund Ltd.
Winton Futures Fund Ltd. 100 1000

CFD
Winton Futures Fund Ltd.

Winton Capital Management Limited
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Two Sigma Investments, LLC
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund (the “Fund”) as at 31 July 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance
for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland" (“FRS 102") and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

What we have audited
The Fund's consolidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 July 2017;

the consolidated statement of total return for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
units for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) and with SEC Independence Rules. We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the SEC Independence Rules.

Other information

The manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the General Information, the
Additional Disclosures Required for Swiss Registered Funds, the Investment Adviser's Report, the Statement of
Manager's Responsibilities, the Statement of the Trustee's Responsibilities, the Disclosure to Investors, the
Report of the Trustee, the Portfolio of Investments, the Summary of Significant Portfolio Changes, the Performance
Information and the Information on HSBC Uni-Folio (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the manager for the consolidated financial statements
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The manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair

view in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, the requirements of
Guernsey law, and for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the manager either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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HSBC TRADING ADVANTEDGE FUND

INFORMATION ON HSBC UNI-FOLIO (UNAUDITED)

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the manager.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business

activities within the Fund to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for

the direction, supervision and performance of the Fund audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Fund's unitholders as a body in
accordance with paragraph 6.02(1) of the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 2013 and for
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no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

Date: 15/11/17
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Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the
“Company”) as at 31 December 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008.

What we have audited
The Company’s financial statements comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e thenotesto thefinancia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basisfor opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Codg”). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of Guernsey law and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for ng the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as agoing concern. If we conclude that amaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Under The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e we have not received al the information and explanations we require for our audit;
e proper accounting records have not been kept; or
e thefinancia statements are not in agreement with the accounting records.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Furthermore we have examined the Statement of Financial Resources set out on page 20. In our opinion the financial resources requirement
specified in Rule 2.2.2 of The Licensees (Capital Adequacy) 2010 Rules has been satisfied.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the members as a body in accordance with Section 262 of the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Cl LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands
March 28, 2017
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